
City of Twin Oaks – Public Meeting - Board of Aldermen Agenda; July 15, 2020 
Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF TWIN OAKS  
BOARD OF ALDERMEN MEETING  

BOARD CHAMBERS, TWIN OAKS CITY HALL 
1381 BIG BEND ROAD 

WEDNESDAY, JULY 15, 2020, 7:00 p.m. 
 
To balance both the need for continuity of government and protection of the health and safety of our 
residents, business persons and employees, this meeting of the Board of Aldermen will be open to public 
attendance in person, providing that those who attend wear face coverings and maintain social distancing.  
 
In addition, the meeting will also be livestreamed on Facebook so that the public may watch and listen to 
the meeting virtually. The livestream of the meeting will be accessible by tablet/laptop/PC or mobile 
device at www.facebook.com/twinoaksmo.  
 
The Board apologizes for any inconvenience these requirements may pose but it is extremely important 
all measures in compliance with the orders issued by public health authorities be taken to protect 
employees, residents, and elected officials during these extraordinary times. 
 
Residents and others who wish to comment may also email their comments to City Clerk Frank Johnson, 
fjohnson@cityoftwinoaks.com, by 6 p.m. on July 15, 2020, and their comments will be shared with the 
Board at the appropriate time.  
 

Tentative Agenda 
 
1) REGULAR MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
 
2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
3) ROLL CALL 
 
4) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
5) APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

a) Board of Aldermen Regular Session Minutes from July 1, 2020 
b) Bills List from June 27 to July 9, 2020 
c) Credit Card List from May 18 to June 15, 2020 

 
6) REPORT OF COMMITTEES/COMMISSIONS/CONTRACTORS 

a) Park Committee — Cindy Slama 
b) Financial Statements — Jeff Blume 
c) Semi-Annual Statement — Jeff Blume 
d) Crescent Road Sidewalk Project — Tiffaney Meyer, BFA Engineering 

 
7) PRELIMINARY CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
8) COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 

a) Board of Adjustment — Jim Owens  
b) Park Committee — Mary Lou Knox  

http://www.facebook.com/twinoaksmo
mailto:fjohnson@cityoftwinoaks.com


City of Twin Oaks – Public Meeting - Board of Aldermen Agenda; July 15, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 

c) Park Committee — Cindy Slama  
 
9) NEW BUSINESS 

a) Resolution 20-19: A RESOLUTION OF THE TWIN OAKS BOARD OF 
ALDERMEN APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TWIN 
OAKS AND DAVEY TREE EXPERT COMPANY FOR TREE REMOVAL IN TWIN 
OAKS PARK.  

b) Resolution 20-20: A RESOLUTION OF THE TWIN OAKS BOARD OF 
ALDERMEN APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN 
AGREEMENT WITH GERSTNER ELECTRIC, INC. FOR WORK ON BOLY LANE.  
 

10) DISCUSSION ITEMS 
a) Meramec Road Striping Project 
b) Board Appointments 

 
11) ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
12) CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
 
13) MAYOR AND ALDERMEN COMMENTS 

 
14) FINAL CITIZEN COMMENTS 

(Remarks shall be limited to three (3) minutes on any one subject unless time is extended 
by the Board) 

 
15) ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

Frank Johnson 
City Clerk              POSTED: July 13, 2020, 2:00 p.m. 

 
 
Please note: Any person requiring physical or verbal accommodations should contact the city office 12 
hours prior to meeting at 636-225-7873. Copies of public records for this agenda are available for public 
inspection before and at the time of the meeting. 
 



City of Twin Oaks-Board of Aldermen-Regular Meeting Minutes–July 1, 2020 
Page 1 of 7 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                             
BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF TWIN OAKS, 

TWIN OAKS TOWN HALL 
ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI 

             WEDNESDAY, JULY 1, 2020 
 

The meeting of the Twin Oaks Board of Aldermen was called to order at 7:00 pm.   Roll 
Call was taken: 
 
Mayor: Russ Fortune-yea 
 
Aldermen: April Milne –yea                                   Lisa Eisenhauer – yea 
 Dennis Whitmore –yea                         Tim Stoeckl – yea                               
   
  
Also Present:   Frank Johnson, City Clerk 
 Paul Rost, City Attorney 
     
Permanent records are kept of all minutes and ordinances.  Each ordinance is read a 
minimum of two times by title, unless otherwise noted. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
Mayor Fortune asked if there were any changes to the agenda.  Hearing none, Alderman 
Whitmore motioned to approve the Agenda, seconded by Alderman Milne.  The motion 
passed by a voice vote.   
 

APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Mayor Fortune asked if there were any changes to the Consent Agenda consisting of the 
June 17, 2020 Work Session Minutes, June 17, 2020 Regular Session Minutes and the Bills 
List from June 14, 2020 to June 26, 2020.  Alderman Whitmore had a question concerning 
the payment to Davey Tree regarding treatment of the damaged cypress tree.  Alderman 
Whitmore motioned to approve the Consent Agenda seconded by Alderman Stoeckl. The 
motion passed by voice vote. 
 

ELECTION RESULTS 
 

Resolution 2020-15-A Resolution Of The Twin Oaks Board Of Aldermen Accepting 
The Abstract Of The City Election Held On June 2, 2020 As Returned To The City By 
the Board Of Election Commissioners Of St. Louis County:   
 
 
 



City of Twin Oaks-Board of Aldermen-Regular Meeting Minutes–July 1, 2020 
Page 2 of 7 

 

Aldermen 
  April Milne   52 votes  
  Tim Stoeckl    51 votes  
   
Mayor Fortune asked for any questions concerning Resolution 2020-15.  Mayor Fortune 
asked for a motion to approve Resolution 2020-15.  Alderman Whitmore motioned to 
approve Resolution 2020-15, seconded by Alderman Eisenhauer.  The motion passed by 
voice vote. 

ADJOURNMENT SINE DIE 
 

Mayor Fortune asked for a motion declaring the meeting over via adjournment sine die.  
Alderman Eisenhauer motion to adjourn, seconded by Alderman Milne.  The motion 
passed by a voice vote. 
 

OATHS OF OFFICE 
 

City Clerk Johnson swore in Tim Stoeckl and April Milne each for a two-year term as 
Aldermen for the City of Twin Oaks. 
 

ROLL CALL OF NEW BOARD 
 

Roll call was taken for the new Board. 
 
Mayor:  Russ Fortune-yea 
 
Aldermen: April Milne – yea                                        Lisa Eisenhauer – yea  
  Dennis Whitmore – yea                              Tim Stoeckl – yea   
 

ELECT BOARD PRESIDENT 
 

Mayor Fortune stated that it is an annual requirement to elect a Board President.  He asked 
for nominations.  Alderman Whitmore nominated Alderman Eisenhauer seconded by 
Alderman Stoeckl.  The motion passed on a roll call vote as follows:  Aldermen Milne-yea, 
Eisenhauer-yea Whitmore-yea and Stoeckl-yea. 
 

REPORTS OF COMMITTEES/COMMISSIONS/CONTRACTORS 
 
Police Report:  Officer Wehner reviewed the June Police Report.  He stated that there had 
been a vehicle break-in within the City.  Alderman Whitmore inquired where the vehicle 
was located. Officer Wehner stated that the vehicle was at the apartments at the time of the 
break-in.  Alderman Stoeckl asked if residents are going on vacation how do they go about 
having their place watched by the Police.  Officer Wehner stated that he has a form at City 
Hall they can fill out or, the most efficient way, is to call the 7th precinct which puts the 
information into the system immediately.   



City of Twin Oaks-Board of Aldermen-Regular Meeting Minutes–July 1, 2020 
Page 3 of 7 

 

 
PRELIMINARY CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 
Karen Dresner asked what the responsibilities are of the President of the Board.  Mayor 
Fortune explained that the President will fill in during Mayor’s absence.   
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
Resolution 2020-16-A Resolution Of The Twin Oaks Board Of Aldermen Approving 
An Agreement Between The City Of Twin Oaks And Bates Electric, Inc. For Site 
Work For The Installation Of An Ameren Light Pole:  Mayor Fortune asked for any 
questions concerning Resolution 2020-16.  Mayor Fortune asked for a motion to approve 
Resolution 2020-16.  Alderman Whitmore motioned to approve Resolution 2020-16, 
seconded by Alderman Eisenhauer.  The motion passed by voice vote. 
 
Resolution 2020-17-A Resolution Of The Twin Oaks Board Of Aldermen Approving 
The City Clerk’s Request To Destroy Certain Records:  Mayor Fortune asked for any 
questions concerning Resolution 2020-17.  Mayor Fortune asked for a motion to approve 
Resolution 2020-17.  Alderman Milne motioned to approve Resolution 2020-17, seconded 
by Alderman Eisenhauer.  The motion passed by voice vote. 
 
Resolution 2020-18-A Resolution Of The Twin Oaks Board Of Aldermen Approving 
An Agreement Between The City Of Twin Oaks and J&B Franchise Venture, Inc. 
Doing Business As Jan-Pro Cleaning Systems Of St. Louis For Cleaning And 
Disinfecting Services:  Mayor Fortune asked for any questions concerning Resolution 
2020-18.  Mayor Fortune asked for a motion to approve Resolution 2020-18.  Alderman 
Stoeckl motioned to approve Resolution 2020-18, seconded by Alderman Eisenhauer.  The 
motion passed by voice vote. 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

Meramec Station Road Striping:  City Clerk Johnson introduced Lee Cannon of CBB 
Engineering who joined the meeting virtually.  Mr. Cannon gave an overview of what CBB 
would propose for the striping of Meramec Station.  He stated that they would develop a 
Concept Plan for the area and design plans which would provide different options.  Mr. 
Cannon also stated that there are several grant options which would help to pay for any 
project developed for this area.   
 
Mayor Fortune asked Mr. Cannon if he was familiar with the area and Mr. Cannon stated 
he was.  Mayor Fortune stated that the initial idea for Meramec Station was to have a 
separate area for walkers, jogger and bicyclist and provide some safety for these 
individuals.  Mr. Cannon stated that it would not be wise to stripe the road without and 
engineering study.  With the engineering study you would then have a concept plan which 



City of Twin Oaks-Board of Aldermen-Regular Meeting Minutes–July 1, 2020 
Page 4 of 7 

 

could then be implemented.  He also stated that ADA compliance may need to be 
considered in this area as well.   
 
Alderman Eisenhauer stated that when the apartments were designed that there were traffic 
studies were done which could be used for this project to help hold down the cost.  
Alderman Eisenhauer also asked Mr. Cannon if he would be willing to work on an hourly 
basis to help determine what the City could do in this area.   
 
Discussion ensued.  The Board decided that Mayor Fortune and Alderman Milne will meet 
with Mr. Cannon on Meramec Station to get a better idea of what can be done in this area 
to provide a suitable pedestrian area.  City Clerk Johnson will set the meeting for some 
time the week of July 6th.   
 

ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
Attorney Rost stated that he had been working with City Clerk Johnson on the contract for 
Jan-Pro.  He also reviewed briefly the Valley Park Fire district letter.   
 
Alderman Milne asked if the City could put out to the residents that the City has a notary 
which they can use, especially if they have the mail-in ballot for the August election.  
Attorney Rost stated that this could be done.   
 

CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
 
Code Enforcement Contract with St. Louis County 

● We received the updated code enforcement contract from St. Louis County on 7/1. 
The updates to the contract were minor in nature. With this in place, we will be able 
to have the county perform inspections of properties with potential code violations.  
 

Meramec Station Road Striping 
● As directed by the Board, staff contacted traffic engineering firm CBB for design 

services regarding the Meramec Station Road striping project. Staff held a virtual 
meeting with Lee Cannon from CBB on June 23 to discuss the project. 

● CBB is preparing a proposal for a conceptual study to evaluate alternatives for 
improving pedestrian access along the road. The board could use the study to help 
decide what improvements they would like to implement.  

● A conceptual study is not necessary for the engineering work to proceed if the 
board can determine exactly what improvement it would like to see (shared use 
path, sidewalk, restriping, etc.) 

 
 
 



City of Twin Oaks-Board of Aldermen-Regular Meeting Minutes–July 1, 2020 
Page 5 of 7 

 

Crescent Road Sidewalks, Phase One 
● BFA has finished preparing a cost estimate and concept plan for the first phase of 

sidewalks along Crescent Road. Due to a scheduling conflict, this plan will be 
presented at the July 15 meeting.  

 
STP Application for Crescent Road 

● On June 29, staff held a virtual conference call with transportation planners from 
East-West Gateway Council of Governments to review the city’s grant application.  

● The application received a total score of 89.15 out of 125 possible points: 
 

Category Points Notes 

Preserve and Maintain Existing System 57 / 60 Based on the condition of the roadway.  

Preserve and Maintain Existing System 1 / 5 Based on functional classification of the roadway 
(busier road = higher score). 

Increase Multimodal Connections 9 / 12 Added sidewalks and connected to the park 

Promote Safety 0 / 8 No new safety infrastructure that would 
significantly reduce crash rates. 

Support Neighborhoods and Communities 0 / 4 Project is not located within what is classified as 
an “environmental justice” census tract. 

Support a Diverse Economy with a Reliable 
Transportation System 

0 / 1 Project did not include “management and 
operations” strategies.  

Support quality job development 0 / 4 Low employment density in the project area. 

Strengthen Intermodal Connections 0 / 5 Project was not deemed to increase access or 
safety for commercial/freight traffic.  

Cost Score 19.15 / 20 Based on the cost of the project compared to the 
total federal funds that were available. 

Usage score 3 / 5 Based on the estimated Person Miles of Travel 
(PMT) for the project. Higher PMT = higher 
score.  

 

Additional Notes 
● The city expects to soon receive an application for an Amended Final Development 

Plan for a Dunkin Donuts in Big Bend Square. The Planning and Zoning 
Commission will consider the plan at their July 28 meeting with a public hearing 
and board approval scheduled for Aug. 5.  

https://www.ewgateway.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/02/Region_2016_Environmental-Justice_JAN_2018.pdf


City of Twin Oaks-Board of Aldermen-Regular Meeting Minutes–July 1, 2020 
Page 6 of 7 

 

● The City approved a sign permit and business license for CVS Pharmacy, which 
took over the Schnucks Pharmacy inside the grocery store as of June 19.  

● City Hall will be closed July 3rd in observance of the Fourth of July holiday.  
● The city’s website provider recently performed some backend maintenance that is 

now causing visitors to see an error message regarding the website’s security 
certificate. We are pressing CivicCMS to get this fixed as soon as possible.  

 
MAYOR AND ALDERMAN COMMENTS 

 
Alderman Whitmore asked if there was any news on the proposed Dunkin Donuts in Big 
Bend Square.  City Clerk Johnson stated that he spoke with the architect and they are 
finishing up last minute items.  They are hoping to send the plans to the City within the 
next few weeks.   
 
City Clerk Johnson stated that the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting is scheduled 
for Tuesday, July 28, 2020.  Also, a Public Hearing regarding Dunkin Donuts is proposed 
for the August 5th Board meeting pending the City receives the documents from Dunkin 
Donuts.   
 

FINAL CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
Karen Dresner inquired who will be speaking at the August 5th Board meeting regarding 
the proposed sidewalks along Crescent Avenue.  Mayor Fortune stated that Tiffaney 
Campbell of BFA.  Ms. Dresner stated that she will hold her questions until that time.   
 
Jeff Graves stated that he had found an instant read thermometer for a reasonable price if 
anyone is interested.   
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business, Alderman Milne motioned to adjourn the regular meeting 
at 8:04 p.m., seconded by Alderman Whitmore and the motion passed with the unanimous 
consent of the Board of those present. 
 
 
 
Drafted By:  _____________________________ 
                     Theresa Gonzales,  
                     Administrative Assistant  
 
 
  
Date of Approval:  ________________________ 



City of Twin Oaks-Board of Aldermen-Regular Meeting Minutes–July 1, 2020 
Page 7 of 7 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________  _____________________________ 
Frank Johnson                        Russ Fortune, 
City Clerk                                              Mayor, Board of Aldermen  



Check No. Invoice Date Memo/Description Invoice No. Bill Amt Check Amt

11653
6/24/2020 Park-turn off PRS rotor in wet area on zone 3; adjust rotor near bathroom 11913 $80.00 $80.00

11654 Harvey's Services, Inc.

6/30/2020 Monthly City wide mowing SJN#17685 $4,093.09 $4,093.09

11655
7/2/2020 Treatment of upper and lower lake 17686 $408.00 $408.00

11656

Final payment for rescheduled July 3rd concert-September 18th $375.00 $375.00

11657

7/2/2020 Mutt Mitts for Park
351704

$546.80 $546.80

11658 Traffic Control Company

6/29/2020 (4) Playground Closed Until Further Notice
9419-IN

$68.88 $68.88

11659 TruGreen

Treatment of lawn at City Hall $79.00 $79.00

11660 John Williams

7/1/2020 Apartment Inspections-9 @ $75.00-$675.00 $675.00 $675.00

Online Missouri One Call 6/30/2020 Second quarter locates 61098
$12.50 $12.50

Online Waste Management 6/26/2020 Monthly service for July
$3,880.40 $3,880.40

Online Spire 6/24/2020 Monthly service for 50 Crescent Ave.
$28.52 $28.52

Online Spire 6/24/2020 Monthly service for City Hall
$41.91 $41.91

Online MSD 6/19/2020 Monthly service for 50 Crescent Ave.
$36.09 $36.09

Online Ameren Missouri 6/24/2020 Monthly service for 50 Crescent Ave.
$97.56 $97.56

Online Ameren Missouri 6/24/2020 Monthly service for 50 Crescent Ave. water pump
$229.06 $229.06

Online Ameren Missouri 6/24/2020 Monthly service for 1 Twin Oaks Ct. 
$254.71 $254.71

Online Ameren Missouri 6/24/2020 Monthly service for City Hall
$1,054.33 $1,054.33

Online Ameren Missouri 6/24/2020 Monthly service for Big Bend and 141
$62.30 $62.30

Online MO American Water 6/22/2020 Monthly service for 50 Crescent Ave.
$14.16 $14.16

Online MO American Water 6/18/2020 Monthly service for City Hall
$45.02 $45.02

Online MO American Water 6/18/2020 Monthly service for City Hall Irrigation
$401.32 $401.32

Online MO American Water 6/18/2020 Monthly service for Derbyshire Dr. Irrigation
$982.09 $982.09

Online Mastercard 6/15/2020 Monthly statement
$3,033.23 $3,033.23

Online St. Louis County Treasurer 7/6/2020 Monthly Police Contract-July 129293 $11,092.49 $11,092.49

Online MO American Water 6/29/2020 Monthly service for 1312 Big Bend Irrigation $1,110.78 $1,110.78
Online MO American Water 6/30/2020 Monthly service for 1 Twin Oaks Ct. Park $7.53 $7.53
Online MO American Water 7/2/2020 Monthly service for 1 Twin Oaks Ct. Firepark $25.20 $25.20
Online Marco Technologies 6/29/2020 Monthly copies INV7722243 $78.59 $78.59

______________________________
Alderman

______________________________
Alderman

Marshll Scott Laytham

Mutt Mitts

City of Twin Oaks
Bills and Applied Payments
June 27, 2020- July 9, 2020

Alternative Rain Irrigation

Lake Management Services



Credit Card List
May 18 - June 15, 2020

Date Name Memo/Description Amount
5/19/2020 Phillips 66 Petromart Fuel for truck and equipment 13.35  

5/19/2020 Valley Park Elevator Corp. Fish food 42.99  

5/20/2020 Greenscapes Flowers for City 268.22  

5/21/2020 Adobe Monthly charge 14.99  

5/21/2020 Missouri Municipal League Conference for R. Fortune, T. Stoeckl and F. Johnson 1,450.00  

5/22/2020 Fish Window Cleaning Cleaning of City Hall windows 163.00  

5/27/2020 Valley Park Elevator Corp. City supplies 70.00  

5/29/2020 Greenscapes Flowers for City and Park 114.24  

5/30/2020 Sam's Club City supplies 69.14  

5/30/2020 Sam's Club City supplies 119.28  

6/1/2020 Amazon Tea for City Hall 27.84  

6/1/2020 Intuit Monthly charge 70.00  

6/1/2020 Greenscapes Flowers for City 76.44  

6/1/2020 UPS Store Shipping cost 10.95  

# 6/1/2020 Post Office Stamps 110.00  

6/3/2020 Phillips 66 Petromart Fuel for truck and equipment 38.60  

6/3/2020 Micro Center-Brentwood Camera for Board meetings 49.99  

6/4/2020 Greenscapes Flowers for Park 187.11  

6/8/2020 Lowes Supplies for City 85.66  

6/8/2020 MO Sectretary of State Notary for T. Gonzales 26.25  

6/12/2020 Valley Park Elevator Corp. Paint for Park 10.19  

6/3/2020 Zoom Monthly charge 14.99  

3,033.23 



CITY OF 
TWIN OAKS, MISSOURI

MONTHLY OPERATING 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE SIX MONTHS 
ENDED 

JUNE 30, 2020 AND JUNE 30, 2019



2020 2019
ASSETS
         3-115 Enterprise Bank - Sewer Lateral 56,673$        56,308$        
         4-113 US Bank Trust Account 136               136               
         9-100 Petty Cash 100               100               
         9-111 Meramec Money Market 10,478          10,445          
         9-112.1 Enterprise Bank-General Checking 84,874          48,560          
         9-112.2 Enterprise Bank - Gen. Money Market 989,945        1,034,929     
         9-112.3 Enterprise Bank - Special Account 59,798          59,438          
         9-122.2 CD Meramec Valley .5987 9/8/19 115,191        113,990        
         9-128 Escrow Deposits Payable (10,000)         (10,000)         
         9-129 Accrued Interest 88                 88                 
      Total Bank Accounts 1,307,284     1,313,995     
         9-130 Accounts Receivable 854               854               
         1-180 Taxes Receivable - Road 8,324            9,239            
         2-180 Taxes Receivable - Park 62,578          27,996          
         3-180 Taxes Receivable - Sewer Lateral 1,497            1,373            
         4-180 Taxes Receivable - CI 53,192          23,797          
         9-109 Undeposited Funds (6,070)           -                
         9-144 Prepaid Items 7,057            7,057            
         9-180 Taxes Receivable - GF 151,372        104,462        
         9-180.1 Deferred Property Taxes Receivable 14,741          -                
         9-181 Other receivables -                1,210            

TOTAL ASSETS 1,600,828$    1,489,982$    
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
            9-210 MVB Credit MasterCard 6,544$          8,120$          
            1-201 Accounts Payable - Cap Improve 9,540            5,275            
            2-201 Accounts Payable - Parks 7,386            17,045          
            2-240 Park Reservation Deposits 550               800               
            4-201 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - CIST -                154               
            9-201 Accounts Payable - GF 10,673          13,619          
            9-233 LAGER Liability 1,856            1,348            
            9-239 Accrued Payroll 14,512          4,945            
            9-240 Community Room Deposits 680               900               
            9-281 Deferred property tax revenue-Annual Assessement 14,741          14,741          

   TOTAL LIABILITIES 66,482          66,948          
   Fund Balance -                -                
      1-301 Road Fund Balance 24,122          -                
      2-301 Park & Storm Fund Balance 231,363        509,480        
      3-301 Sewer Lateral Fund Balance 65,427          61,149          
      4-301 Cap Impr Fund Balance 458,445        503,431        
      9-301 General Fund Balance 502,293        562,354        

         Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 252,696        (213,379)       
   Total Fund Balance 1,534,346     1,423,034     

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 1,600,828$    1,489,982$    

City of Twin Oaks, Missouri
Balance Sheets

June 30, 2020 and 2019

PAGE 1 OF 5



CITY OF TWIN OAKS, MISSOURI
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES, FUND BALANCE AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

  

Amount %
REVENUES RECEIVED

Sales Taxes -$        134,697$  -$           158,468$  281,691$  574,856$     1,007,300$  57 % 528,222$    46,634$     9 %
Property Taxes -          -            32,742       -            19,572      52,314         55,600         94 % 24,872        27,442       110 %
Intergovernmental Taxes -          -            4,830         -            9,878        14,708         27,400         54 % 11,218        3,490         31 %
Licenses, Permits & Fees 3,365      -            -             -            72,287      75,652         102,000       74 % 18,659        56,994       305 %
Grants -          -            -             -            -            -               -               -       -              -             -        
Miscellaneous Revenue -          -            -             100           2,751        2,851           3,200           89 % 3,200          (349)           (11)%
Interest Income 1,685      -            -             -            1,701        3,387           5,000           68 % 3,040          347            11 %

5,050      134,697    37,572       158,568    387,881    723,768       1,200,500    60 % 589,209      134,559     23 %

EXPENDITURES PAID
Personnel Services -          -            21,996       14,643      73,507      110,145       261,100       42 % 116,328      6,183         5 %
Administrative -          -            -             -            59,814      59,814         104,500       57 % 68,046        8,232         12 %
Operating -          -            41,703       20,864      33,481      96,049         244,900       39 % 128,679      32,630       25 %
Contractual -          -            -             -            35,722      35,722         105,300       34 % 50,272        14,550       29 %
Police -          -            -             -            66,555      66,555         126,200       53 % 64,311        (2,244)        (3)%
Lease -          -            -             -            -            -               100              -       (76)              (76)             100 %
Repairs and Maintenance -          -            1,831         23,105      -            24,937         44,200         56 % 14,290        (10,646)      (75)%
Debt Service -          71,379      -             -            -            71,379         142,800       50 % 71,393        14              0 %
Capital additions

Stormwater -          -            -             -            -            -               700              -       -              -             -        
Other -          -            6,472         -            -            6,472           151,500       4 % 289,346      282,874     98 %

Total -          71,379      72,002       58,612      269,078    471,072       1,181,300    40 % 802,589      331,517     41 %
-        

5,050      63,318      (34,430)      99,955      118,802    252,696       19,200         1,316 % (213,379)     466,075$   (218)%
FUND BALANCE - 

Beginning of Year 65,427    458,445    24,118       231,363    502,293    1,281,646    1,281,646    1,772,401   
End of Period 70,477$  521,763$  (10,312)$    331,318$  621,095$  1,534,342$  1,300,846$  1,559,022$ 

Budget 100         (9,000)       -             67,600      (39,500)    19,200         
Actual Over/(Under) Budget 4,950$    72,318$    (34,430)$    32,355$    158,302$  233,496$       

DIFFERENCE
FAV / (UNFAV)% Bdgt

JUNE 30, 2020

Sewer Parks BudgetCIST 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF 
REVENUES  OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN 
FUND BALANCE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND JUNE 30, 2019

JUNE 30, 2019

TotalGeneralRoad Actual

C:\Users\jblume\Dropbox\VOTO Fin Sts\2020\
VOTO SRAE 2020.xls
Clssfd

7/9/2020
9:55 PMPAGE 2 OF 5



CITY OF TWIN OAKS, MISSOURI
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES,
FUND BALANCE AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

Sewer CIST Road Parks General Total
REVENUES RECEIVED

Sales Taxes -$         239,100$     -$          292,900$   475,300$   1,007,300$   
Property Taxes -           -               15,200      -             40,400       55,600          
Intergovernmental Taxes -           -               10,400      -             17,000       27,400          
Licenses, Permits & Fees 4,700       -               -            -             97,300       102,000        
Grants -           -               -            -             -             -                
Miscellaneous Revenue -           -               -            -             3,200         3,200            
Interest Income 400          -               -            -             4,600         5,000            

5,100       239,100       25,600      292,900     637,800     1,200,500     

EXPENDITURES PAID
Court -              -               -            -             -             -                
Personnel Services -              -               39,700      42,800       178,600     261,100        
Administrative -           -               -            -             104,500     104,500        
Operating 5,000       -               79,800      83,200       76,900       244,900        
Contractual -           -               -            -             105,300     105,300        
Police -           -               -            -             126,200     126,200        
Lease -           -               -            -             100            100               
Repairs and Maintenance -           -               10,800      33,400       -             44,200          
Debt Service -           142,800       -            -             -             142,800        
Capital additions

Stormwater -           -               -            700            -             700               
Other -           65,000         78,500      8,000         -             151,500        

Total 5,000       207,800       208,800    168,100     591,600     1,181,300     

100          31,300         (183,200)   124,800     46,200       19,200          

-           (40,300)        183,200    (57,200)      (85,700)      -                
-           (40,300)        183,200    (57,200)      (85,700)      -                
100          (9,000)          -            67,600       (39,500)      19,200          

FUND BALANCE - 
Beginning of Year 65,427     458,445       24,118      231,363     502,293     1,281,646     
End of Period 65,527$   449,445$     24,118$    298,963$   462,793$   1,300,846$   

Budget
Actual Over/(Under) Budget

TOTAL

BUDGET - FYE 12/31/2020

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

Excess (deficiency) of revenues  
over (under) expenditures

OTHER SOURCES(USES) OF F
Transfers

C:\Users\jblume\Dropbox\VOTO Fin Sts\2020\
VOTO SRAE 2020.xls
Spprt

7/9/2020
9:55 PMPAGE 3 OF 5



CITY OF TWIN OAKS, MISSOURI
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES,
FUND BALANCE AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

REVENUES RECEIVED
Sales Taxes
Property Taxes
Intergovernmental Taxes
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Grants
Miscellaneous Revenue
Interest Income

EXPENDITURES PAID
Court
Personnel Services
Administrative
Operating
Contractual
Police
Lease
Repairs and Maintenance
Debt Service
Capital additions

Stormwater
Other

Total

FUND BALANCE - 
Beginning of Year
End of Period

Budget
Actual Over/(Under) Budget

TOTAL
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

Excess (deficiency) of revenues  
over (under) expenditures

OTHER SOURCES(USES) OF F
Transfers

Sewer CIST Road Parks General Total

-$         134,697$      -$            158,468$   281,691$   574,856$      
-           -                32,742        -             19,572       52,314          
-           -                4,830          -             9,878         14,708          

3,365       -                -              -             72,287       75,652          
-           -                -              -             -             -                
-           -                -              100            2,751         2,851            

1,685       -                -              -             1,701         3,387            
5,050       134,697        37,572        158,568     387,881     723,768        

-           -                -              -             -             -                
-           -                21,996        14,643       73,507       110,145        
-           -                -              -             59,814       59,814          
-           -                41,703        20,864       33,481       96,049          
-           -                -              -             35,722       35,722          
-           -                -              -             66,555       66,555          
-           -                -              -             -             -                
-           -                1,831          23,105       -             24,937          
-           71,379          -              -             -             71,379          

-           -                -              -             -             -                
-           -                6,472          -             -             6,472            
-           71,379          72,002        58,612       269,078     471,072        

5,050       63,318          (34,430)       99,955       118,802     252,696        

-           -                -              -             -             -                
-           -                -              -             -             -                

5,050       63,318          (34,430)       99,955       118,802     252,696        

65,427     458,445        24,118        231,363     502,293     1,281,646     
70,477$   521,763$      (10,312)$     331,318$   621,095$   1,534,342$   

100          (9,000)           -              67,600       (39,500)      19,200          
4,950       72,318          (34,430)       32,355       158,302     233,496        

ACTUAL - JUNE 30, 2020

C:\Users\jblume\Dropbox\VOTO Fin Sts\2020\
VOTO SRAE 2020.xls
Spprt

7/9/2020
9:55 PMPAGE 4 OF 5



CITY OF TWIN OAKS, MISSOURI
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES,
FUND BALANCE AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

REVENUES RECEIVED
Sales Taxes
Property Taxes
Intergovernmental Taxes
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Grants
Miscellaneous Revenue
Interest Income

EXPENDITURES PAID
Court
Personnel Services
Administrative
Operating
Contractual
Police
Lease
Repairs and Maintenance
Debt Service
Capital additions

Stormwater
Other

Total

FUND BALANCE - 
Beginning of Year
End of Period

Budget
Actual Over/(Under) Budget

TOTAL
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

Excess (deficiency) of revenues  
over (under) expenditures

OTHER SOURCES(USES) OF F
Transfers

Sewer CIST Road Parks General Total

-$         122,943$    -$             144,638$   260,640$   528,222$      
-           -              7,858           -             17,014       24,872          
-           -              5,070           -             6,148         11,218          

1,386       -              -               -             17,273       18,659          
-           -              -               -             -             -                
-           -              -               -             3,200         3,200            
264          -              -               -             2,776         3,040            

1,650       122,943      12,928         144,638     307,051     589,209        

-           -              -               -             -             
-           -              21,681         14,704       79,943       116,328        
-           -              -               -             68,046       68,046          
-           -              54,143         42,701       31,834       128,679        
-           -              -               -             50,272       50,272          
-           -              -               -             64,311       64,311          
-           -              -               -             (76)             (76)                
-           -              (4,311)          18,601       -             14,290          
-           71,393        -               -             -             71,393          

-           -              -               -             -             -                
-           4,333          10,914         274,099     -             289,346        
-           75,727        82,428         350,105     294,329     802,589        

1,650       47,216        (69,500)        (205,467)    12,721       (213,379)       

-           -              -               -             -             -                
-           -              -               -             -             -                

1,650       47,216        (69,500)        (205,467)    12,721       (213,379)       

56,196     589,782      24,118         470,276     632,029     1,772,401     
57,846$   636,998$    (45,382)$      264,809$   644,750$   1,559,022$   

ACTUAL - JUNE 30, 2019

C:\Users\jblume\Dropbox\VOTO Fin Sts\2020\
VOTO SRAE 2020.xls
Spprt

7/9/2020
9:55 PMPAGE 5 OF 5



Date: July 09, 2020   
To: Frank Johnson, City Clerk 
From: Jeffrey B. Blume   
Subject: City Ordinance Compliance  

With respect to the City’s Code Section 110.100, requiring semi-annual compilation and 
disclosure of revenues, expenditures and indebtedness, with respect to the City of Twin 
Oaks, Missouri, I make the following report to you. 

Consolidated revenues and expenditures of the City of 
Twin Oaks, Missouri for the Six Months Ended June 30, 
2020 were approximately $724,000 and $471,000, 
respectively, resulting in a net excess of revenues over 
expenses and an increase in fund balance of about 
$253,000.  The City’s non-trade, secured and appropriated 
indebtedness as of this date was about $1,350,000.  
Additional financial information may be obtained from the 
City’s website, http://www.villageoftwinoaks.org.   

In accordance with the ordinance, please cause this information to be published in a 
newspaper serving the City at the earliest date possible.  In addition, please submit this 
report to the City’s Board of Aldermen at its next regularly scheduled meeting for 
inclusion in its packet. 



 

 Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   

  June 25, 2020 

 Page 2 of 3 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 





 
RESOLUTION NO.  20-19 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TWIN OAKS BOARD OF ALDERMEN 
APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TWIN OAKS 

AND DAVEY TREE EXPERT COMPANY FOR TREE REMOVAL IN TWIN 
OAKS PARK.  

              
  

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF TWIN 
OAKS, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The Board of Aldermen hereby approves, and the Mayor is hereby authorized 
to enter a contract on behalf of the City of Twin Oaks with The Davey Tree Expert Company for tree 
removal in Twin Oaks Park. Such contract shall be in substantially the form of the contract, marked 
“Exhibit 1” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

 
Section 2. This Resolution is adopted and shall be in full force and effect on and after its 

passage and approval. 
 
THIS RESOLUTION WAS PASSED AND APPROVED THE 15TH DAY OF JULY, 2020, BY 
THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF TWIN OAKS, MISSOURI. 

 
 
 
 

Russ Fortune, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 

 
 
 

Frank Johnson, City Clerk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Twin Oaks, Missouri 
CONTRACTOR SERVICES CONTRACT 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and effective as of     , 2020, by and between the City of Twin Oaks, 
Missouri, a municipal corporation hereinafter referred to as the “City,” and The Davey Tree Expert Company, 
a Missouri corporation, hereinafter referred to as “Contractor,” with a business mailing address of 6264 
Lemay Ferry Rd. 

WHEREAS, the Contractor provided the City with the proposal, attached hereto as Exhibit A and 
incorporated herein by reference, for the removal of two trees in Twin Oaks Park, as described on Exhibit A 
(the “Proposal”), and the City wishes to engage the Contractor as provider of those services to the City, in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement;  

WITNESSETH: That the parties hereto for the considerations hereinafter set forth agree as follows: 

I. SCOPE OF SERVICES

Contractor’s services are necessary for the following Project of City: Tree Removal and Stump Grinding — 
North Woods Area of Twin Oaks Park.   

Except as expressly specified herein, Contractor hereby agrees to provide the expertise, supplies, 
supervision, labor, skill, materials, equipment, and apparatus to perform all the services and do all the things 
necessary for the proper completion of the scope of services for the Project listed above and as more 
particularly described in the attached Exhibit A. The specific trees to be removed will be marked by the City 
and the manner of this marking will be described to the Contractor.  

The above-referenced services (hereinafter referred to as the “Work”) shall be provided by the Contractor in 
accordance with all the provisions of the Proposal and the attached Twin Oaks General Conditions which 
are incorporated herein by reference, and the terms of the General Conditions shall prevail over any 
conflicting terms that may otherwise be adopted herein as part of any attachment, including the Proposal.  If 
there is any conflict between the City’s General Conditions (attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference) and the Proposal, this Agreement and its General Conditions shall prevail.   

II. COMPENSATION

Upon completion of the Work to the satisfaction of the City,  and within thirty days (30) days of final written 
invoice by the Contractor, the City hereby agrees to pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed $4,820.00 
for the Work as set forth in the Proposal as full compensation for the complete and satisfactory performance 
of the Work.  

III. TIME AND MANNER OF PAYMENTS

All invoices complete with necessary support documentation shall be submitted to the City and payment 
shall be made by City within thirty (30) days of receipt of an invoice received after satisfactory performance 
of the Work for the fees, prices, rates, or schedule of values set forth below. 

IV. CONTRACT SCHEDULE

Time is of the essence. The Work shall be commenced on upon execution of this agreement and shall be 
completed in a reasonable manner no later than July 30, 2020. Failure to complete the Work by the 
completion date shall result in a reduction in the amount due to the Contractor under this Contract in the 

Exhibit 1



 2 

amount of $100.00 per day as liquated damages, herein acknowledged to be reasonable compensation for 
such delay, in addition to any other remedy that the City may have hereunder. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have signed this Agreement as of the effective date of Contract 
first above written. 

                                               
 
         CITY OF TWIN OAKS 
 Full Legal Name of Contractor         
 
   
By                                                           By                                                           

       
Title   Title                                                          

         
   
DATED:          DATED:             
  
   ATTEST:       
     City Clerk 

 

 



 3 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

CITY OF TWIN OAKS, MISSOURI 
CONTRACTOR SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
Independent Contractor.  The Contractor shall be and operate as an independent contractor in the performance of this Contract.  The Contractor 
shall have complete charge of the personnel engaged in the performance of the Work, and all persons employed by the Contractor shall be 
employees of said Contractor and not employees of the City in any respect. 

Compliance with Laws.  The Contractor shall comply with all applicable City ordinances and other laws and regulations, Federal, State, and any 
political subdivision thereof, including but not limited to, unemployment and workers' compensation, occupational safety, equal employment and 
affirmative action and wage and price laws insofar as applicable to the performance of the Contract. Specifically, Contractor shall comply with the 
following state law requirements: 

• Proof of Lawful Presence.  Section 208.009 RSMo., requires that all applicants at the time of application for any contract provided by a 
local government provide “affirmative proof that the applicant is a citizen or a permanent resident of the United States or is lawfully present 
in the United States.”  Contractor’s affirmative proof must be established through (i) a Missouri driver's license, (ii) any “documentary 
evidence recognized by the department of revenue when processing an application for a driver's license,” or (iii) “any document issued 
by the federal government that confirms an alien's lawful presence in the United States.”  §208.009.3. 

Subcontracts.  The Contractor shall not subcontract any of the Work to be performed by it hereunder without the express written consent of the 
City.  In addition, this Contract shall not be assigned by the Contractor. 

Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor agrees to defend with counsel selected by the City, and indemnify and hold 
harmless the City, its officers, engineers, representatives, agents and employees from and against any and all liabilities, damages, losses, claims 
or suits, including costs and attorneys' fees, for or on account of any kind of injury to person, bodily or otherwise, or death, or damage to or destruction 
of property, or any other circumstances, sustained by the City or others,  arising from Contractor's breach of the Contract or out of services and 
operations performed hereunder by the Contractor, including the City's reliance on or use of the services or products provided by the Contractor 
under the terms of this agreement. The Contractor shall not be liable for any loss or damage attributable solely to the negligence of the City.  To the 
extent required by law to enforce this provision, Contractor agrees that this indemnification requires Contractor to obtain insurance in amounts 
specified herein and that Contractor has had the opportunity to recover the costs of such insurance in the Compensation set forth in this Agreement. 

Insurance.  Contractor shall furnish the City the certificates of insurance for workers' compensation, public liability, and property damage, including 
automobile coverage in the amounts specified by the City in the request for proposals, if any, otherwise in the amounts stated on Exhibit B, but 
unless otherwise provided shall be no less than the maximum amounts of liability set forth in Chapter 537.610 RSMo., applicable to political 
subdivisions.  The policies of insurance shall be in such form and shall be issued by such company or companies as may be satisfactory to the City.  
The City, and such additional persons and entities as may be deemed to have an exposure to liability as a result of the performance of the 
Contractor's work, as determined by the City, shall be named as additional insured and the applicable insurer shall owe the City a duty of defense 
on all insurance policies required hereunder. The Contractor shall provide an Additional Insured Endorsement to the City that shall be approved by 
the City prior to commencement of any Work. 

In addition to the foregoing, the Contractor shall maintain Professional Liability "errors and omissions" insurance in the form for the coverages 
satisfactory to City as indicated in the request for proposals, if any, otherwise as stated on attached Exhibit B, if any, but in no event less than the 
maximum amounts of liability set forth in Chapter 537.610 RSMo. applicable to political subdivisions.  The City and Contractor waive all rights against 
each other for damages caused by fire or other perils to the extent covered by Builder's Risk or any other property insurance, except such rights as 
they may have to the proceeds of such insurance; provided that nothing herein shall be deemed a waiver of the City’s sovereign immunity relative 
to any claim against the City. 

Nondisclosure.  The Contractor agrees that it will not divulge to third parties without the written consent of the City any information obtained from 
or through the City in connection with the performance of this Contract. Nothing herein shall preclude disclosure of information by the City. 

Changes.  No change in this Contract shall be made except in writing prior to the change in the Work or terms being performed.  The Contractor 
shall make any and all changes in the Work without invalidating this Contract when specifically ordered to do so in writing by the City. The Contractor, 
prior to the commencement of such changed or revised Work, shall submit promptly to the City, a written cost or credit proposal for such revised 
Work.  If the City and Contractor shall not be able to agree as to the amount, either in consideration of time or money to be allowed or deducted, it 
shall nevertheless be the duty of Contractor, upon written notice from the City, to immediately proceed with such alteration or change, and Contractor 
shall be compensated the reasonable value of such Work.  No Work or change shall be undertaken or compensated for without prior written 
authorization from the City. 

Termination.  The City shall have the right to terminate the Contract at any time for any reason by giving the Contractor written notice to such effect.  
The City shall pay to the Contractor in full satisfaction and discharge of all amounts owing to the Contractor under the Contract an amount equal to 
the cost of all Work performed by the Contractor up to such termination date, less all amounts previously paid to the Contractor on account of the 



 4 

Contract Price.  The Contractor shall submit to the City its statement for the aforesaid amount, in such reasonable detail as the City shall request, 
within thirty (30) days after such date of termination.  The City shall not be liable to the Contractor for any damages on account of such termination 
for loss of anticipated future profits with respect to the remainder of the Work. 

Multi-year contracts; Non-appropriation.  Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, the City is obligated only to make the payments 
set forth in the attached Contract as may lawfully be made from funds budgeted and appropriated for that purpose during the City's then current 
fiscal year at the discretion of the City.  If no funds are appropriated or otherwise made legally available to make the required payments for this 
Agreement during the next occurring fiscal year (an "Event of Nonappropriation"), this Agreement will terminate at the end of the then current fiscal 
year as if terminated expressly.  The failure or inability of the City to appropriate funds for this Agreement in any subsequent fiscal year shall not be 
deemed a breach of this Agreement by any party.   If applicable, this Agreement may be annually renewed at each fiscal year by inclusion of specific 
appropriation for this Agreement, from year to year not to exceed the maximum renewal period or term as set forth in the Agreement. 

Accounting.  During the period of this Contract, the Contractor shall maintain books of accounts of its expenses and charges in connection with 
this Contract in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and practices.  The City shall at reasonable times have access to these 
books and accounts to the extent required to verify all invoices submitted hereunder by the Contractor. 

Correction Period.  Contractor hereby expressly guarantees the aforesaid Work as to workmanship and quality of materials used in connection 
herewith for a term of one (1) year, commencing on the date of final acceptance by the City, and binds itself, its successors or assigns, to make all 
repairs or replacements which may become necessary within said period due to construction defects and nonconformity with the City specifications 
or contract. The Contractor warrants to the City that all materials and equipment furnished under the Contract and incorporated in the Work will be 
new unless otherwise specified, and that all Work will be of good quality, free from faults and defects and in conformance with the Contract.  The 
Contractor’s general warranty and any additional or special warranties are not limited by the Contractor’s obligations to specifically correct defective 
or nonconforming Work a set forth herein, nor are they limited by any other remedies provided in the Contract. 

Request for Proposals.  If the City issued a request for proposals in connection with the Work, such request for proposals and the proposal of the 
Contractor in response thereto are incorporated herein by reference and made a part of this Contract.  In case of any conflicts between the request 
for proposals and the executed Contractor Services Contract or proposal of the Contractor, the requirements of the City’s Request for Proposal and 
this executed Contract shall control and supersede unless a change thereto is specifically stated in this Contract (including Exhibit A, “Scope of 
Work”). 

Project Records and Work Product.  The Contractor shall provide the City with copies of all documents pertinent to the Work which shall include, 
without limitation, reports, correspondence, meeting minutes, and originals of all deliverables. The City shall own all right, title and interest, including 
without limitations, all copyrights and intellectual property rights, to all documents and Work Product of the Contractor created in performance of or 
relating to this Contract.  Contractor agrees to take all steps reasonably requested by the City to evidence, maintain, and defend the City's ownership 
rights in the Work Product. 

Site Operations.  Where appropriate, the City will arrange for right of entry to any property at the request of the Contractor for the purpose of 
performing studies, tests and evaluations in connection with the Work. 

Personnel.  The Work shall be performed exclusively by the personnel of the Contractor identified in the Contractor's proposal and no other 
personnel of the Contractor shall perform any of the Work without the express written approval of the City. 

Representations.  Contractor agrees that it has not relied on any representations or warranties of the City, oral or written, other than expressly 
identified in this Contract.  The parties agree the Contract represents the entire agreement between the parties. 

Governing/Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed and interpreted in accordance with the internal laws of the State 
of Missouri, without regard to its principles of conflict of laws. 

Other Special Provisions.  There are no additional special provisions set forth in the Contractor Services Agreement. 
 
     



 5 

EXHIBIT A 
Proposal 

 
 

 
  







 6 

Exhibit B 
Insurance 

 
Unless otherwise instructed in writing by the City, the Contractor shall obtain and maintain during the 
term of the Project and the Contractor Services Contract the insurance coverages at least equal to the 
coverages below, and as further provided in the General Conditions, but no event less than the individual 
and combined sovereign immunity limits established by Section 537.610 R.S.Mo. Insurance policies 
providing required coverages shall be with companies licensed to do business in the State of Missouri 
and rated no less than AA by Best or equivalent.  All costs of obtaining and maintaining insurance 
coverages are included in the proposal and no additional payment will be made therefor by the City. 
 

Comprehensive General Liability Insurance 
(including coverage for Bodily Injury and  
Property Damage) 

$435,849 per occurrence 
$2,905,664 aggregate 

Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance 
(including coverage for Bodily Injury and  
Property Damage) 

$435,849 per occurrence 
$2,905,664 aggregate 

  
 
 In addition, the Contractor and all subcontractors shall provide Worker’s Compensation Insurance in 
at least statutory amounts for all workers employed at the Project site.  Unless instructed otherwise, the 
Contractor shall also provide a policy of Builder’s Risk Insurance in the amount of 100% of the complete 
insurable value of the Project, which policy shall protect the Contractor and the City, as their respective 
interests shall appear.  Before commencing any work, the Contractor shall provide to the City certificates 
of insurance evidencing the issuance and maintenance in force of the coverages required by this Exhibit 
D.  Each such certificate shall show the City, and such other governmental agencies as may be required 
by the City to be insured by underlying grant or contract relating to the Project, as an additional insured, 
and shall bear an endorsement precluding cancellation of or change in coverage without at least thirty 
(30) days written notice to the City.  Any self-insurance or deductible above $50,000.00 is not permitted. 
 
The City may waive any insurance coverages or amounts required by this Exhibit when the City deems 
such waiver may be in the interest of the public health, safety, and general welfare. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 20-20 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE 
MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH 
GERSTNER ELECTRIC, INC. FOR WORK ON BOLY LANE. 

WHEREAS, in March 2019 the City sought formal proposals in response to its invitation for 
bids for the installation of certain decorative streetlight fixtures along Big Bend Road known as the 
“2019 Big Bend Road Lighting Project”; and, 

WHEREAS, the proposal was awarded to and the City contracted with Gerstner Electric, Inc. 
(“Gerstner Electric”) for the 2019 Big Bend Road Lighting Project; and,  

WHEREAS, based on the prior professional relationship established with Gerstner Electric, 
the City seeks to contract with Gerstner Electric to perform similar street lighting work to be completed 
in Big Bend at Boly Lane; and,  

WHEREAS, Section 145.070.C of the Municipal Code, Exception to the Purchase Policy, 
allows the City to forego the conventional bidding process in various situations where it can be 
demonstrated that the City will receive the best value on a purchase; and,  

WHEREAS, the Board, after giving its prior approval per Section 145.070.C does find that, 
because of the above, the City will receive the best value on a purchase through informal discussion 
and bargaining with Gerstner Electric rather than through the conventional bidding process. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 
CITY OF TWIN OAKS, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Board of Aldermen hereby approves, and authorizes the Mayor to execute, 
the City-Contractor Agreement with Gerstner Electric, Inc., for street lighting work on Boly Lane at a 
price of $9,049.00 (the “Agreement”) substantially in the form of the Agreement attached hereto as 
Exhibit 1 and incorporated herein by reference.   

Section 2. This Resolution shall be effective upon its passage by the Board of Aldermen 
and execution by the Mayor. 

THIS RESOLUTION WAS PASSED AND APPROVED THE 15th DAY OF JULY 2020, BY THE 
BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF TWIN OAKS, MISSOURI. 

Russ Fortune, Mayor 

Attest: 

Frank Johnson, City Clerk 



2 
 

Exhibit 1 
 



Twin Oaks, Missouri 
CONTRACTOR SERVICES CONTRACT 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and effective as of July  , 2020, by and between the City of Twin Oaks, 
Missouri, a municipal corporation hereinafter referred to as the “City,” and Gerstner Electric, Inc., a 
Missouri corporation, hereinafter collectively referred to as “Contractor,” with a business mailing address of 
2400 Cassens Drive, Fenton, Missouri 63026. 

WHEREAS, the Contractor provided the City with the proposal, attached hereto as Exhibit A and 
incorporated herein by reference, for certain services relating to streetlight installation  (the “Proposal”), and 
the City wishes to engage the Contractor as provider of those services to the City, in accordance with the 
terms of this Agreement;  

WITNESSETH: That the parties hereto for the considerations hereinafter set forth agree as follows:  

I. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Contractor’s services are necessary for the following Services of City: Twin Oaks – Boly Lane Street Lighting  

Except as expressly specified herein, Contractor hereby agrees to provide the expertise, supplies, 
supervision, labor, skill, materials, equipment, and apparatus to perform all the services and do all the things 
necessary for the proper completion of the scope of services for the Services, which is generally described as 
the installation of a decorative streetlight, as set out more fully in Exhibit A.  

The above-referenced services (hereinafter referred to as the “Services”) shall be provided by the Contractor 
in accordance with all the provisions of the Proposal and the attached Twin Oaks General Conditions which 
are incorporated herein by reference, and the terms of the General Conditions shall prevail over any 
conflicting terms that may otherwise be adopted herein as part of any attachment, including the Proposal.  If 
there is any conflict between the City’s General Conditions (attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference) and the Proposal, this Agreement and its General Conditions shall prevail.   

II. COMPENSATION 

A. Basic Compensation.  The City hereby agrees to pay the Contractor up to $9,049.00, as set forth in 
the Proposal, as full compensation for the complete and satisfactory performance of the Services, including 
all expenses and costs related thereto, as follows: 

Due at the City’s final acceptance of the Services:  $9,049.00 
 

III. TIME AND MANNER OF PAYMENTS 
 
All invoices complete with necessary support documentation shall be submitted to the City and payment 
shall be made by City within thirty (30) days of receipt of an invoice received after satisfactory performance 
of the Services for the fees, prices, rates, or schedule of values set forth below. 
 

IV. CONTRACT SCHEDULE 
 
Time is of the essence. The Services shall be commenced by ______ , 2020 and completed by ________, 2020. 
Failure to complete the Services as provided herein shall be a material breach of the contract. 
 



 2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have signed this Agreement as of the effective date of Contract 
first above written. 

                                               
GERSTNER ELECTRIC, INC.     CITY OF TWIN OAKS  
 
   
By                                                           By                                                           

       
Title   Title                                                          

         
   
DATED:          DATED:             
  
   ATTEST:       
     City Clerk 
  

 



 3 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 
CITY OF TWIN OAKS, MISSOURI 

CONTRACTOR SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
Independent Contractor.  The Contractor shall be and operate as an independent contractor in the performance of this Contract.  The Contractor 
shall have complete charge of the personnel engaged in the performance of the Work, and all persons employed by the Contractor shall be 
employees of said Contractor and not employees of the City in any respect. 

Compliance with Laws.  The Contractor shall comply with all applicable City ordinances and other laws and regulations, Federal, State, and any 
political subdivision thereof, including but not limited to, unemployment and workers' compensation, occupational safety, equal employment and 
affirmative action and wage and price laws insofar as applicable to the performance of the Contract. Specifically, Contractor shall comply with the 
following state law requirements: 

• Work Authorization Program.  If the Contract is for services expected to cost more than $5,000.00, the Contractor shall comply with 
Section 285.530 RSMo., pertaining to enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program (as defined therein) and shall 
provide verification through an affidavit (attached as Exhibit B) that the Contractor (1) does not knowingly employ any person who is an 
unauthorized alien in connection with the Contract and (2) is enrolled in a federal work authorization program and provide documentary 
proof thereof.  The affidavit shall contain the notarized signature of the registered agent, legal representative or corporate officer of the 
business entity including but not limited to the human resources director or their equivalent. 

• Proof of Lawful Presence.  Section 208.009 RSMo., requires that all applicants at the time of application for any contract provided by a 
local government provide “affirmative proof that the applicant is a citizen or a permanent resident of the United States or is lawfully present 
in the United States.”  Contractor’s affirmative proof must be established through (i) a Missouri driver's license, (ii) any “documentary 
evidence recognized by the department of revenue when processing an application for a driver's license,” or (iii) “any document issued 
by the federal government that confirms an alien's lawful presence in the United States.”  §208.009.3. 

• Contractor further agrees to pay not less than the prevailing hourly wage of wages set out on the wage order attached hereto as Exhibit 
C (if applicable) and made part of the specification for Work under this Agreement, to all workers performing any work under this Contract.  
The Contractor will forfeit a penalty to the City of $100 per day for each worker that is paid less than the prevailing rate for any Work done 
under the contract by the Contractor.   

Subcontracts.  The Contractor shall not subcontract any of the Work to be performed by it hereunder without the express written consent of the 
City.  In addition, this Contract shall not be assigned by the Contractor. 

Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor agrees to defend with counsel selected by the City, and indemnify and hold 
harmless the City, its officers, engineers, representatives, agents and employees from and against any and all liabilities, damages, losses, claims 
or suits, including costs and attorneys' fees, for or on account of any kind of injury to person, bodily or otherwise, or death, or damage to or destruction 
of property, or any other circumstances, sustained by the City or others,  arising from Contractor's breach of the Contract or out of services and 
operations performed hereunder by the Contractor, including the City's reliance on or use of the services or products provided by the Contractor 
under the terms of this agreement. The Contractor shall not be liable for any loss or damage attributable solely to the negligence of the City.  To the 
extent required by law to enforce this provision, Contractor agrees that this indemnification requires Contractor to obtain insurance in amounts 
specified herein and that Contractor has had the opportunity to recover the costs of such insurance in the Compensation set forth in this Agreement. 

Insurance.  Contractor shall furnish the City the certificates of insurance for workers' compensation, public liability, and property damage, including 
automobile coverage in the amounts specified by the City in the request for proposals, if any, otherwise in the amounts stated on Exhibit D, but 
unless otherwise provided shall be no less than the maximum amounts of liability set forth in Chapter 537.610 RSMo., applicable to political 
subdivisions.  The policies of insurance shall be in such form and shall be issued by such company or companies as may be satisfactory to the City.  
The City, and such additional persons and entities as may be deemed to have an exposure to liability as a result of the performance of the 
Contractor's work, as determined by the City, shall be named as additional insured and the applicable insurer shall owe the City a duty of defense 
on all insurance policies required hereunder. The Contractor shall provide an Additional Insured Endorsement to the City that shall be approved by 
the City prior to commencement of any Work. 

In addition to the foregoing, the Contractor shall maintain Professional Liability "errors and omissions" insurance in the form for the coverages 
satisfactory to City as indicated in the request for proposals, if any, otherwise as stated on attached Exhibit D, if any, but in no event less than the 
maximum amounts of liability set forth in Chapter 537.610 RSMo. applicable to political subdivisions.  The City and Contractor waive all rights against 
each other for damages caused by fire or other perils to the extent covered by Builder's Risk or any other property insurance, except such rights as 
they may have to the proceeds of such insurance; provided that nothing herein shall be deemed a waiver of the City’s sovereign immunity relative 
to any claim against the City. 

Nondisclosure.  The Contractor agrees that it will not divulge to third parties without the written consent of the City any information obtained from 
or through the City in connection with the performance of this Contract. Nothing herein shall preclude disclosure of information by the City. 



 4 

Changes.  No change in this Contract shall be made except in writing prior to the change in the Work or terms being performed.  The Contractor 
shall make any and all changes in the Work without invalidating this Contract when specifically ordered to do so in writing by the City. The Contractor, 
prior to the commencement of such changed or revised Work, shall submit promptly to the City, a written cost or credit proposal for such revised 
Work.  If the City and Contractor shall not be able to agree as to the amount, either in consideration of time or money to be allowed or deducted, it 
shall nevertheless be the duty of Contractor, upon written notice from the City, to immediately proceed with such alteration or change, and Contractor 
shall be compensated the reasonable value of such Work.  No Work or change shall be undertaken or compensated for without prior written 
authorization from the City. 

Termination.  The City shall have the right to terminate the Contract at any time for any reason by giving the Contractor written notice to such effect.  
The City shall pay to the Contractor in full satisfaction and discharge of all amounts owing to the Contractor under the Contract an amount equal to 
the cost of all Work performed by the Contractor up to such termination date, less all amounts previously paid to the Contractor on account of the 
Contract Price.  The Contractor shall submit to the City its statement for the aforesaid amount, in such reasonable detail as the City shall request, 
within thirty (30) days after such date of termination.  The City shall not be liable to the Contractor for any damages on account of such termination 
for loss of anticipated future profits with respect to the remainder of the Work. 

Multi-year contracts; Non-appropriation.  Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, the City is obligated only to make the payments 
set forth in the attached Contract as may lawfully be made from funds budgeted and appropriated for that purpose during the City's then current 
fiscal year at the discretion of the City.  If no funds are appropriated or otherwise made legally available to make the required payments for this 
Agreement during the next occurring fiscal year (an "Event of Nonappropriation"), this Agreement will terminate at the end of the then current fiscal 
year as if terminated expressly.  The failure or inability of the City to appropriate funds for this Agreement in any subsequent fiscal year shall not be 
deemed a breach of this Agreement by any party.   If applicable, this Agreement may be annually renewed at each fiscal year by inclusion of specific 
appropriation for this Agreement, from year to year not to exceed the maximum renewal period or term as set forth in the Agreement. 

Accounting.  During the period of this Contract, the Contractor shall maintain books of accounts of its expenses and charges in connection with 
this Contract in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and practices.  The City shall at reasonable times have access to these 
books and accounts to the extent required to verify all invoices submitted hereunder by the Contractor. 

Correction Period.  Contractor hereby expressly guarantees the aforesaid Work as to workmanship and quality of materials used in connection 
herewith for a term of one (1) year, commencing on the date of final acceptance by the City, and binds itself, its successors or assigns, to make all 
repairs or replacements which may become necessary within said period due to construction defects and nonconformity with the City specifications 
or contract. The Contractor warrants to the City that all materials and equipment furnished under the Contract and incorporated in the Work will be 
new unless otherwise specified, and that all Work will be of good quality, free from faults and defects and in conformance with the Contract.  The 
Contractor’s general warranty and any additional or special warranties are not limited by the Contractor’s obligations to specifically correct defective 
or nonconforming Work a set forth herein, nor are they limited by any other remedies provided in the Contract. 

Request for Proposals.  If the City issued a request for proposals in connection with the Work, such request for proposals and the proposal of the 
Contractor in response thereto are incorporated herein by reference and made a part of this Contract.  In case of any conflicts between the request 
for proposals and the executed Contractor Services Contract or proposal of the Contractor, the requirements of the City’s Request for Proposal and 
this executed Contract shall control and supersede unless a change thereto is specifically stated in this Contract (including Exhibit A, “Scope of 
Work”). 

Project Records and Work Product.  The Contractor shall provide the City with copies of all documents pertinent to the Work which shall include, 
without limitation, reports, correspondence, meeting minutes, and originals of all deliverables. The City shall own all right, title and interest, including 
without limitations, all copyrights and intellectual property rights, to all documents and Work Product of the Contractor created in performance of or 
relating to this Contract.  Contractor agrees to take all steps reasonably requested by the City to evidence, maintain, and defend the City's ownership 
rights in the Work Product. 

Site Operations.  Where appropriate, the City will arrange for right of entry to any property at the request of the Contractor for the purpose of 
performing studies, tests and evaluations in connection with the Work. 

Personnel.  The Work shall be performed exclusively by the personnel of the Contractor identified in the Contractor's proposal and no other 
personnel of the Contractor shall perform any of the Work without the express written approval of the City. 

Representations.  Contractor agrees that it has not relied on any representations or warranties of the City, oral or written, other than expressly 
identified in this Contract.  The parties agree the Contract represents the entire agreement between the parties. 

Governing/Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed and interpreted in accordance with the internal laws of the State 
of Missouri, without regard to its principles of conflict of laws. 

Other Special Provisions.  The special provisions set forth on Exhibit A are incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof. 
 
     



 5 

EXHIBIT A 
Proposal 

 



 6 

 
Exhibit B 

 
AFFIDAVIT OF PARTICIPATION IN 

FEDERAL WORK AUTHORIZATION PROGRAM 
 

 
Comes now      , first being duly sworn, on my oath and affirms that 
Gerstner Electric, Inc. (“Company”) is enrolled and will continue to participate in federal work 
authorization program with respect to employees that will work in connection with the contracted 
services related to and any incidental items associated with this work for the duration of the 
contract, if awarded, in accordance with Section 285.530.2, Revised Statutes of Missouri.   I also 
affirm that the Company does not and will not knowingly employ a person who is an unauthorized 
alien in connection with the contracted services for the duration of the contract, if awarded.  
Attached to this affidavit is documentation of the Company’s participation in a federal work 
authorization program. 

(ATTACH DOCUMENTATION SHOWING THAT COMPANY PARTICIAPTES IN FEDERAL WORK 
AUTHORIZATION PROGRAM.  ALSO ATTACH DRIVER’S LICENSE OR OTHER PROOF OF LAWFUL 
PRESENCE, AS PROVIDED IN THE GENERAL CONDITIONS – 208.009 RSMo.) 

 
In Affirmation thereof, the facts stated above are true and correct (The undersigned understands that 
false statements made in this filing are subject to the penalties provided under Section 575.040, RSMo.). 
 
 
               
Signature (person with authority)     Printed Name 
 
 
               
Title         Date 
 
State of Missouri   ) 

) ss. 
County of     ) 
 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _____ day of ______________, 2020. 
 
 

      
My commission expires:     Notary Public 
 

 
 

  



 7 

Exhibit C 
 

N/A 
 

  



 8 

Exhibit D 
 

Insurance in an amount acceptable to the City. 



City Clerk’s Report 
City of Twin Oaks, Board of Alderman 

July 15, 2020 

 
Project Updates 
Meramec Station Road Striping 

● Mayor Russ Fortune, Alderman April Milne and Maintenance Supervisor John Williams 
met with Lee Cannon from CBB to discuss possible improvements to Meramec Station 
Road on Tuesday, July 10. The next steps for the project will be discussed at the Board 
of Aldermen meeting on July 15.  

 
Crescent Road Sidewalks, Phase One 

● BFA has completed the cost estimate and concept plan for the first phase of sidewalks 
along Crescent Road and will present the materials at the Board of Aldermen meeting on 
July 15.  
 

Dunkin Donuts Development Plan 
● The City received the development plan and application for the Dunkin Donuts in Big 

Bend Square on July 8. The plans have been sent to BFA Engineering and city attorney 
Paul Rost for their review and shared with the members of the board and the planning 
and zoning commission.  

● The plans will be reviewed by the planning and zoning commission on July 28. The 
public hearing will be held during the Board of Aldermen meeting on August 5. Notice of 
the public hearing will be published in The Countian and posted at City Hall, on the City 
website and on Facebook.  

 
Golden Oak Court Lighting 

● The approved contract has been submitted to Bates Electric. They are currently working 
on getting the locates finished for utilities in the area before scheduling a start date for 
the project.  

Additional Notes 
● The sanitation of the bathrooms by JanPro began on Wednesday, July 8. No issues with 

the cleaning crews have been reported by maintenance staff. 
● City staff reported an above-ground pool constructed without a permit at 62 Crescent 

Ave. to St. Louis County for code enforcement. The County has confirmed that they did 
not receive a permit for the work and will be issuing a violation. The property owner will 
have 30 days to obtain the proper permit and resolve the violation. 

● A request for cleaning and clearing the storm sewers along Autumn Leaf was submitted 
to MSD on July 7. MSD has not given an estimated date for when the cleaning will occur.  


	4) 07-15-20 Board of Aldermen Agenda.pdf
	1) REGULAR MEETING CALLED TO ORDER
	3) ROLL CALL
	4) APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	5a) 07-01-20 Board of Aldermen Regular Meeting Minutes.pdf
	MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                             BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF TWIN OAKS,
	TWIN OAKS TOWN HALL
	ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI
	Also Present:   Frank Johnson, City Clerk
	Paul Rost, City Attorney
	Permanent records are kept of all minutes and ordinances.  Each ordinance is read a minimum of two times by title, unless otherwise noted.
	Additional Notes

	There being no further business, Alderman Milne motioned to adjourn the regular meeting at 8:04 p.m., seconded by Alderman Whitmore and the motion passed with the unanimous consent of the Board of those present.

	5b) 7-15-20  Bills List.pdf
	Bills and Applied Payments

	5c) 07-15-20 Credit Card list.pdf
	Transaction Detail by Account

	6b) 202006 COTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Binder.pdf
	Title
	Clssfd
	Spprt

	6c) ord compliance at 20200630.pdf
	6d1) Prel. Cost Est. - Crescent Ave Sidewalk - 1.0.pdf
	6d2) Exhibit - Crescent Ave Sidewalk - 1.0_r.pdf
	9a) Resolution No. 20-19 - Resolution Approving Contract - Davey Tree.pdf
	Davey Services Agreement-tree removal.pdf
	Twin Oaks, Missouri
	CONTRACTOR SERVICES CONTRACT
	I. SCOPE OF SERVICES
	II. COMPENSATION
	III. TIME AND MANNER OF PAYMENTS
	IV. CONTRACT SCHEDULE
	Time is of the essence. The Work shall be commenced on upon execution of this agreement and shall be completed in a reasonable manner no later than July 30, 2020. Failure to complete the Work by the completion date shall result in a reduction in the a...
	CITY OF TWIN OAKS, MISSOURI
	Other Special Provisions.  There are no additional special provisions set forth in the Contractor Services Agreement.
	EXHIBIT A
	Proposal
	Exhibit B
	Insurance


	9b) Resolution No. 20-20 - Resolution Approving Contract - Gerstner Electric .pdf
	Resolution 2020- Gerstner Electric .pdf
	Gerstner - Boly Lane Contract 2020.pdf
	Twin Oaks, Missouri
	CONTRACTOR SERVICES CONTRACT
	I. SCOPE OF SERVICES
	II. COMPENSATION
	III. TIME AND MANNER OF PAYMENTS
	IV. CONTRACT SCHEDULE
	Time is of the essence. The Services shall be commenced by ______ , 2020 and completed by ________, 2020. Failure to complete the Services as provided herein shall be a material breach of the contract.
	GENERAL CONDITIONS
	CITY OF TWIN OAKS, MISSOURI
	Other Special Provisions.  The special provisions set forth on Exhibit A are incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof.
	EXHIBIT A
	Proposal
	Exhibit B
	AFFIDAVIT OF PARTICIPATION IN
	Subscribed and sworn to before me this _____ day of ______________, 2020.
	Exhibit C
	N/A
	Exhibit D
	Insurance in an amount acceptable to the City.


	12) City Clerk's Report 7_15_20 .pdf



